
Policing Advisory Commission  

100 Maryland Avenue • 240-777-7900 • www.montgomerycountymd.gov 

1 

POLICING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

Tuesday, August 15, 2023 

6:35pm to 8:50pm  

Meeting Virtually 

      Meeting Minutes 

Commission members present: Kristy Daphnis, Christina DeLane, Vernon Ricks, Laurie Ekstrand, Cherri 

Branson, Ty McKinney, Eric Sterling [7 attendees]  

Commission members absent:  Ruhama Endishaw, Robin Gaster [2 absent] 

Ex-officio members present:  Sgt. Cate Brewer (FOP), Capt. Jordan Satinsky (MCPD) [2 attendees] 

Support staff: Susan Farag [1 staff]  

Guests: Captain Jason Cokinos, MCPD; Lt. Doug Miller, MCPD; Dale Phillips, MCPD; Heidi Rhodes (Jews 

United for Justice) [4 guests]  

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Mr. Sterling called the meeting to order at 6:35PM. 

I. Attendance and Administrative Items

• Council staff took attendance and began recording the meeting. Chair Sterling confirmed at

6:42 that 7 members were present, which represents a quorum.

• Total attendees: 14

II. Approval of Minutes (September 2022 and July 2023)

• VOTE: The PAC voted (7-0) to approve the minutes.

III. Development of Annual Report

• The PAC discussed the annual report.

• Mr. Sterling had sent out Version 4 (draft) before the meeting, and requested any comments.

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82233084531?pwd=QTJ4MGdhRDNqSWFTZVhpRStBcWpoQT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82233084531?pwd=QTJ4MGdhRDNqSWFTZVhpRStBcWpoQT09


Policing Advisory Commission  

100 Maryland Avenue • 240-777-7900 • www.montgomerycountymd.gov 

2 

• Ms. Ekstrand wanted to ensure all data requests were included, perhaps attached as an 
appendix.

• Mr. Ricks stated 10 pages is a fairly long report and suggested that there be a summary at the 
beginning.

• Ms. Branson agreed with Mr. Ricks and asked for a list of all the PAC meetings.

• Ms. Daphnis remarked that many commissions may not have met as often during COVID, and Mr. 
Sterling indicated that the PAC has been meeting virtually since its inception.  And virtual 
meetings have helped maximize access and attendance.

• Mr. Ricks asked to thank both staff  and the Police Department in the report for their help and 
support.

• ACTION: Mr. Sterling will make the suggested changes.

IV. Pilot program:  Drone as First Responder (Captain Jason Cokinos and Lt. Doug Miller, MCPD)

• Captain Cokinos provided an overview of the DFR pilot program (slide deck attached to minutes).

• He advised that he understands there may be some community concern about privacy and noted that

the drones do not have audio or facial recognition capabilities.

• Mr. Ricks asked how the drones could avoid potential obstacles like power lines and Capt. Cokinos

described the drone’s geofencing capabilities, so that certain objects could be geofenced and the drone

would automatically stop before any collision.

• Mr. Ricks asks if there were loudspeaker capabilities to speak to anyone on the ground and Capt.

Cokinos stated there were not.

• Ms. Branson asked what types of calls would trigger a drone response.  Capt. Cokinos explained that

the pilot would be listening to live calls and determine which calls would benefit from a drone

response.

• Ms. Branson asked why Wheaton and Silver Spring were picked as the pilot locations.  Capt. Cokinos

said they conceivably could be used across the county but the pilot if focusing on areas with higher

calls for service.  In addition, the department looked at which shifts and districts had the shortest

staffing.

• Ms. Branson asked about how physical reports will be generated. Capt. Cokinos indicated every flight

will be logged, and there will be a data dashboard online that is updated daily.

• Ms. Branson asked about other jurisdictions and whether they have had any complaints or concerns by

the community.   The only concerns were regarding privacy from camera recordings, which MCPD will

address by keeping the camera pointed up to the sky until the drone arrives close to the area of the

911 call, and MPIA requests, which will be handled the same way they have been to keep things

consistent.  He mentioned that he is working with Councilmembers to hold public forums, including

one in Wheaton on 9/12, to explain the program to residents. This will provide an opportunity for

feedback and questions.

• Mr. McKinney asked how many manhours were needed to run the program.   Capt. Cokinos stated that

it was two sites, 40 hours a week.

• Mr. Sterling asked whether there would be a function code policy created. Capt. Cokinos said there is

one for current drones.  It will be updated shortly to reflect the DFR.

• Mr. Ricks asked if drones would be used for surveillance and Capt. Cokinos said no.



Policing Advisory Commission  

100 Maryland Avenue • 240-777-7900 • www.montgomerycountymd.gov 

3 

• Mr. Ricks asked if they work with gun shot detections and Capt. Cokinos said no, but eventually could

integrate with the Violent Crime Information Center by sharing the livestream video from the drone

with the analysts.

• Ms. Branson asked how long the pilot would be.  Capt. Cokinos stated through FY24 and then if it is

successful, it will be planned for in the FY25 recommended budget.

• Ms. Branson asked what are the measures of success?  Capt. Cokinos stated that the department will

look at response times, whether DFR can help reduce the number of officer responses, and attach a

cost per hour to police officer + car + equipment/per hour, and estimate any actual cost savings. MCPD

will also track de-escalations and crime apprehensions due to the DFR program.

• Ms. Branson asked how people would make complaints. Capt. Cokinos said they could be sent by email

and to the PAB, which is the same process as any other police complaint.

• Mr. Ricks asked if the drones could respond to FRS events, too, and Capt. Cokinos said yes if

appropriate.

• Mr. Sterling thanked Capt. Cokinos for the presentation.

V. Update on Virtual Reality Training

• Mr. McKinney has been working with the department to research and select a VRT module. He asked

for an update.  Captain Satinsky provided a brief update, that a vendor had been selected but they

were in the middle of contract negotiations, and he could not disclose the vendor yet.

• Ms. Branson asked about the procurement method, scope of work, etc. and Capt. Satinsky believed it

was grant funded, but he said he would find out and provide the information.

• Mr. McKinney stated he had ongoing concerns about whether there was implicit bias built into the

software program.

VI. Bill 12-23 Police – Traffic Stops - Limitations (STEP ACT) – discuss recommendation to Public Safety

Committee (now postponed until the fall)

• Mr. Sterling had circulated a draft created by Dr. Gaster.

• Ms. Ekstrand stated she would like to return to the original language in the draft after stating the PAC

has not concluded disparities means there is racism in the department.

• Ms. Branson stated it should be deleted.

• Mr. McKinney stated it was not necessary for the PAC to comment on whether it believes there is

racism in the department.

• Mr. McKinney stated that he had concerns about the consent search prohibition in the bill and that

Councilmember Jawando had previously stated he was amenable to amending it. In Mr. McKinney’s

experience, they could be very useful.  What Mr. McKinney would like to see is that individuals are

clearly given the right to refuse to be searched, without penalty.

• Ms. Ekstrand indicated she would like to require officers to speak their reasons for asking for a consent

search into their Body Worn Cameras, for the record.

• Mr. McKinney stated that if there is probable cause, there is no need to request permission to search.

He’d like to see it codified similar to Miranda warnings.

• Mr. Ricks and Ms. Branson questioned whether the consent search might be misused more often in

certain neighborhoods.

• Mr. Sterling asked for Sgt. Brewer’s opinion.  She stated that police are taught they cannot ask a

leading question.  They must complete the original stop first before asking for a consent search.   The

https://apps.montgomerycountymd.gov/ccllims/BillDetailsPage?RecordId=2787&fullTextSearch=12-23
https://apps.montgomerycountymd.gov/ccllims/BillDetailsPage?RecordId=2787&fullTextSearch=12-23
https://apps.montgomerycountymd.gov/ccllims/BillDetailsPage?RecordId=2787&fullTextSearch=12-23
https://apps.montgomerycountymd.gov/ccllims/BillDetailsPage?RecordId=2787&fullTextSearch=12-23


Policing Advisory Commission  

100 Maryland Avenue • 240-777-7900 • www.montgomerycountymd.gov 

4 

academy does not teach consent searches because they do not have the experience yet to surmise 

when a consent search may be helpful, and they are trained later on that.  

• Mr. Sterling called for a vote on the modified letter. He said there would be two major changes.  One 
was to take out the two sentences that may infer conclusions drawn about whether police were 

racist or not.  The second was to request an amendment on consent searches, stating they were a 

valuable tool, but could be misused.  The amendment should explicitly require officers to tell 

individuals they may decline a search, without consequence.

• Ms. Branson motioned to adopt these changes.  Mr. McKinney seconded it.

• VOTE:  The Pac voted 5-1, with Mr. Ricks opposed and Ms. Delane abstaining.

• ACTION: Mr. Sterling will revise the letter and circulate.

VII. Adjourned

• Ms. Daphnis moved to adjourn; Mr. McKinney seconded. The meeting was adjourned at 8:50pm.



Drone as First 
Responder (DFR)





• Focused program – related to police calls for service

• Staffing issues

• Helps with response times 

• Decision making, de-escalation, and enhances public safety.

• Cheaper and safer than a helicopter – doesn’t burn fuel, clean for 
environment.

• Reduces unnecessary law enforcement contacts in certain circumstances.





Drone as First Responder:
(DFR)









DJI Matrice 300 RTK

Weight: About 20 LBS

Speed: Up to 51 MPH

Flight Time: Up to 55 Minutes

Flying at 400 FT above ground / buildings










	Minutes08152023
	I. Attendance and Administrative Items
	III. Development of Annual Report
	IV. Pilot program:  Drone as First Responder (Captain Jason Cokinos and Lt. Doug Miller, MCPD)
	V. Update on Virtual Reality Training
	VII. Adjourned

	PAC -MCPD - DFR Presentation 
	Slide 1: Drone as First Responder (DFR)
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Drone as First Responder: (DFR)
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9: DJI Matrice 300 RTK
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13


